
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Monica Bell, Democratic Services (01254) 380114 
Email: monica.bell@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 14 March 2018 

Page 1 of 3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Council 
 
Thursday, 22 March 2018 at 7.00 pm, 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor Peter Britcliffe (in the Chair) 
Councillors Judith Addison, Lisa Allen, Mohammad Ayub, Noordad Aziz, Jean Battle, 
Stephen Button, Clare Cleary, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad, Bernard Dawson, Tony Dobson, 
Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, June Harrison, Stephanie Haworth, 
Eamonn Higgins, Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan, Julie Livesey, Gareth Molineux, Jenny Molineux, 
Ken Moss, Tim O'Kane, Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson, Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, 
Malcolm Pritchard, Jeff Scales and Paddy Short 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Announcements   
 
 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 22nd February 
2018. 
 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

5.   Question Time   
 
To deal with any questions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 2.2(vi). 
 

6.   Draft Pay Policy 2018  (Pages 13 - 24) 
 
Report attached. 
 

7.   Minutes of Cabinet  (Pages 25 - 40) 
 
To receive the Minutes of the Cabinet meetings held on 3rd January and 14th February 
2018. 
 
Rules of Debate 
 

 The Leader of the Council will move the Minutes, the Deputy Leader of the 
Council will second the Minutes. 

 Non-Executive Members will be invited to make comment or ask questions on the 
Minutes (5 Minutes). 

 Cabinet Members will be invited to make comment and respond to any points 
raised (5 Minutes). 

 The Leader of the Council will be given up to 15 Minutes to respond and to 
answer any questions raised. 

 

8.   Minutes of Committees  (Pages 41 - 68) 
 
To receive the Minutes of Committees, as set out below. 
 
Rules of Debate 
 

 The Leader of the Council will introduce the Minutes as a whole. 

 Any Member may raise any issue from the Minutes; the Chair of the 
relevant Committee may respond (5 Minutes). 

 The Leader of the Council will close the debate (5 Minutes). 
 
 

 

Meeting Date 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

20th December 2017 

Licensing Sub-Committee 5th January 2018 

Judicial Committee (Private Hire and Hackney 
Carriage Licensing 

22nd January 2018 

Planning Committee 30th January 2018 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and  
Scrutiny Committee 

31st January 2018 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 19th February 2018 

Planning Committee 21st February 2018 
 

9.   Motion(s) submitted on Notice   
 
To consider any Motions for debate in accordance with Council Procedure Rule A9. 
 

 
 
 

 
Chief Executive 
Scaitcliffe House, 
Ormerod Street, 
ACCRINGTON BB5 OPF 
 
Wednesday, 14 March 2018 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
186 

 
COUNCIL 

 

 
Thursday, 22nd February, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Mohammad Ayub (in the Chair), Councillors Judith Addison, 

Lisa Allen, Noordad Aziz, Jean Battle, Peter Britcliffe, Stephen Button, 
Clare Cleary, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad, Bernard Dawson, 
Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, 
Glen Harrison, June Harrison, Eamonn Higgins, Terry Hurn, Julie Livesey, 
Gareth Molineux, Jenny Molineux, Ken Moss, Tim O'Kane, 
Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson, Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, 
Malcolm Pritchard, Jeff Scales and Paddy Short 
 

Apologies: Councillors Abdul Khan and Stephanie Haworth 

  

 
356 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Stephanie Haworth and Abdul 
Khan. 
 

357 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
It was noted that all Councillors had been granted a dispensation to speak and vote in 
relation to setting Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government and Finance Act 
1992. 
 

358 Announcements 
 
The late Arthur Davidson 
 
The Deputy Mayor paid tribute to Arthur Davidson who had died in January 2018. Arthur 
had been the Labour MP for Accrington from 1966 to 1983. Councillors Dawson, O’Kane, 
Dobson and Miles Parkinson also placed on record their tributes.  
 
A minutes silence was held as a mark of respect. 
 

359 Confirmation of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of Council held on 11th January 2018 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

360 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2020/2021 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Gareth Molineux) presented a report relating 
to the Medium Term Financial Strategy which set out income and spending projections for 
the Council for the next three years, 2018/19 to 2020/21. The report had been submitted to 
Cabinet on the 14th February 2018 and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 
19th February 2018. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4.



 
 
 

 

 
187 

The objectives of the Strategy were:-  
 

 To be the financial expression of the Corporate Plan, providing the resources to 
deliver the plan. 

 

 To ensure that commitments did not exceed forecasted anticipated resources over 
the period and for each year.  

 

 To ensure that expenditure was increasingly focused on those areas which the 
Council had determined as its priority areas. 

 

 To ensure that the level of Council Tax was planned in line with what the Council 
and the community as a whole regarded as being acceptable, albeit within the 
context of guidelines from Central Government.  

 

 To review the effectiveness of delivery of additional resources into priority areas, to 
ensure that the objectives set for those target areas were actually being achieved. 

 

 To ensure that the Council remained in a strong financial position as measured by 
the size of balances and reserves (consistent with the Chief Financial Officer’s 
recommendations).   

 

 To improve value for money assessments in all services by delivering increased 
efficiency savings.  

 
The key elements of the Strategy were:- 
 

 Forecasting Resources 

 Budget Monitoring and Forecasting Commitments 

 Corporate Strategic Direction and Priorities of the Council 
 
Resolved - That the report and the accompanying Medium Term 

Financial Strategy be approved. 
 

361 Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management Strategy 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report setting out the Council’s policy and 
objectives with respect to treasury management, explaining how it would achieve its 
objectives and manage its activities, and seeking agreement to an investment strategy for 
2018/19.  Treasury Management was defined as:- 
 
“The management of the Council’s investment and cash flows, its banking, money market 
and capital market transactions; 
 
The effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and, 
 
The pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 
 
The Council was required to operate a balanced budget which meant that cash raised 
during the year met cash expenditure.  Part of treasury management was to ensure the 
cash flow was properly planned with cash available when needed.  Surplus monies were 
invested in line with the Council’s low risk preferences. 
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
188 

The Prudential Code was a professional code that set out the framework for self-regulation 
of capital spending and financing which allowed councils to invest in capital projects without 
any limit as long as such investment was affordable, prudent and sustainable.  The Code 
was produced by Cipfa and required the Council to agree and monitor a minimum number 
of prudential indicators (including limits and statements) which related to affordability, 
prudence, capital expenditure, external debt and treasury management. 
 
The aspects addressed in the report were:- 
 

 Capital Expenditure and the Capital Financing Requirement 

 Estimated Capital Expenditure 

 Minimum Revenue Provision 

 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

 Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19 to 2020/21 

 External Debt Overall Limits 

 External v Internal Borrowing 

 Limits on Activity 

 Debt Rescheduling 

 Investment Strategy   

 Treasury Management Practices (TMP) 

 Policy on the use of External Service Providers 

 Treasury Management Strategy In-Year and Year-End Reporting 
 
Resolved (1) That the prudential indicators and limits detailed in the 

report be adopted; 
 
 (2) That the treasury management strategy, and associated 

indicators, as set out in section 8 of the report, be 
approved; 

 
 (3) That the investment strategy, as set out in section 13 of 

the report, be approved;  and, 
 
 (4) That the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for year 

2018/19, set out in Appendix 1 to the report, be 
approved; 

 
 (5) That the Treasury Management Policy Statement 

2018/19, as set out in Appendix 2 to the report, be 
approved;  and, 

 
 (6) That the Treasury Management Practices Statement 

2018/19, as set out in Appendix 3 to the report, be 
approved.  

 
362 General Revenue Budget, Council Tax Levels and Capital Programme 2018/19 

 
Before the start of the debate, the Deputy Mayor sought consent to the order and format of 
the debate, a copy of which had been circulated prior to and at the meeting.  The meeting 
gave its consent to the proposed arrangements. 
 
The Leader of the Council presented the proposed revenue and capital budget and council 
tax levels for 2018/19. Proposals for the 2018/19 general fund revenue budget and capital 
programme had been put forward at Cabinet on the 14th February 2018 and had been 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
189 

recommended to Council for approval. The Leader put forward an updated report circulated 
at the meeting setting out the Council’s budget requirement for 2018/19, its Precept on the 
Collection Fund and the formal details surrounding the Precept of other bodies on the 
Collection Fund and seeking permission to continue to allow former Area Council budgets 
for Capital and Revenue to be retained by those groups or their successors and for 
additional payment or payments to be made to Lancashire Pension Authority if surplus 
funds existed.    
 
The Vice-Chair of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Councillor Jenny 
Molineux) submitted a report of that Committee’s consideration for the budget proposals, to 
which the Leader responded. 
 
A motion was proposed by Councillor Miles Parkinson and seconded by Councillor Gareth 
Molineux:- 
 
“That the recommendations for the General Fund Revenue and General Fund Capital 
Programme Budget and Council Tax Levels for 2018/19, now submitted by the Controlling 
Group of the Council, be approved.” 
 
A number of proposals were then submitted by the Leader of the Conservative Group 
(Councillor Tony Dobson). 
 
A debate on the motion then followed, after which it was put to the vote.  In accordance with 
the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 a 
recorded vote was taken.  The votes were recorded as follows:- 
 
For the Motion: 
 
Councillors Judith Addison, Lisa Allen Mohammad Ayub, Noordad Aziz, Jean Battle, 
Stephen Button, Clare Cleary, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad, Bernard Dawson, Tony 
Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, June Harrison, 
Eamonn Higgins, Terry Hurn, Julie Livesey, Gareth Molineux, Jenny Molineux, Ken Moss, 
Tim O’Kane, Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson, Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, Malcolm 
Pritchard, Jeff Scales and Paddy Short, (31). 
 
Against the Motion: 
 
None. 
 
Abstentions: 
 
Councillor Peter Britcliffe, (1). 
 
The motion was therefore carried. 
 

Resolved (1) That the Cabinet’s recommendations on the Revenue 
and Capital Budgets and Prudential Indicators and 
Treasury Management Report for 2018/19 to 2020/21 
made at the Cabinet meeting on the 14th February 2018 
be accepted and adopted;  

 
  (2) That Council Tax for Hyndburn Borough Council be 

increased by £5.00 to £240.52 for the year for a Band D 
property.  That was equivalent to a 10 pence per week 
increase for a Band D property, but most people in 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
190 

Hyndburn would see an annual increase of £3.34 as they 
lived in Band A properties.  The weekly increase there 
would be 7 pence;   

 
  (3) That the Council commits to continuing to strengthen 

its Reserves during the year and requires the Chief 
Executive and the Deputy Chief Executive to take 
appropriate action to protect the Council’s overall 
financial position and further strengthen its Reserves 
during the forthcoming year; 

 
  (4) That the Council delegates authority to the Chief 

Executive to take such action as he considers 
necessary to implement the measures contained in the 
budget;  

 
  (5) That it be noted that on the 3rd January 2018 the Council 

at its Cabinet calculated: 
 

o the Council Tax Base 2018/19 for the whole 
Council area as 20,506 (Item T in the formula in 
Section 31B(3) of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992, as amended (the “Act”)) and, 

 
o for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a 

Parish precept relates as 314; 
 

  (6) That Council agrees that the Council Tax requirement 
for the Council’s own purpose for 2018/19 (excluding 
Parish precepts) is £4,932,103; 

 
  (7) That Council agrees that the following amounts be 

calculated for the year 2018/19 in accordance with 
Sections 31 to 36 of the Act: 

 
a)  £50,441,674 Being being the aggregate of the 

amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out 
in Section 31A(2) of the Act 
taking into account all 
precepts issued to it by Parish 
Councils. 

 
b)  £45,496,926 being being the aggregate of the 

amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out 
in Section 31A(3) of the Act. 

 
c)  £4,944,748 being being the amount by which the 

aggregate at 7(a) above 
exceeds the aggregate at 7(b) 
above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with 
Section 31A(4) of the Act as 
its Council Tax requirement 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
191 

for the year (Item R in the 
formula in Section 31A(4) of 
the Act). 

 
d)  £241.14 being being the amount at 7(c) above 

(Item R), all divided by Item T 
(5 above), calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with 
Section 31B(1) of the Act, as 
the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year 
(including Parish precepts). 

 
 

e)  £12,645 being being the aggregate amount of 
all special items (Parish 
precepts) referred to in 
Section 34(1) of the Act (as per 
the attached Appendix B). 

 
f)  £240.52 being being the amount at 7(d) above 

less the result given by 
dividing the amount at 7(e) 
above by Item T (5 above), 
calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 34(2) 
of the Act, as the basic 
amount of its Council Tax for 
the year for dwellings in those 
parts of its area to which no 
Parish precept relates. 

 
 

  (8) That Council note that the County Council, the 
Lancashire Police & Crime Commissioner and the 
Lancashire Combined Fire & Rescue Authority have 
issued precepts to the Council in accordance with 
Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 
for each category of dwellings in the Council’s area as 
indicated in the table below; 

 
  (9) That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets 
the aggregate amounts shown in the table below as the 
amounts of Council Tax for 2018/19 for each part of its 
area and for each of the categories of dwellings; 

 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
192 

2017/18 2018/19 Increase

£ £

Hyndburn 

Borough Council

235.52 240.52 2.12%

Lancashire 

County Council

1,221.74 1,294.92 5.99%

Lancashire 

Police & Crime 

Commissioner

165.45 177.45 7.25%

Lancashire Fire 

& Rescue 

Authority

65.50 67.46 2.99%

Sub Total 1,688.21 1,780.35 5.46%

Altham Parish 

Council

40.27 40.27 0.00%

Total 1,728.48 1,820.62 5.33%  
 
  (10) That the Council note the basic amount of Council Tax 

for 2018/19 is not considered excessive in accordance 
with principles approved under Section 52 ZB Local 
Government Finance Act 1992; 

 
  (11) That the Deputy Chief Executive be given delegated 

authority to amend the budget (following  consultation 
with the Leader of the Council) for technical reasons or 
to comply with legal requirements, such as the 
restructuring of cost centres, the re-apportionment and 
re-allocation of overheads etc., so long as these 
changes have an overall neutral impact on the budget; 

 
  (12) That any continuing balances on Revenue or Capital 

previously earmarked for Area Councils continues to be 
set aside for use by these or their successor bodies; 

 
  (13) That the Chief Executive be given delegated authority to 

use the unallocated surplus generated in 2017/18 to 
fund any future shortfall in income or additional 
expenditure, to support “Invest to Save” projects that 
will help reduce the Council’s long term costs(including 
additional payments to the Pension Fund as outlined 
below), or support specific capital projects, or finance 
other commitments that he deems to be in the best long 
term interest of the Council or to transfer funds to 
Reserves as required;   

 
  (14) That the Chief Executive be given delegated authority 

following consultation with the Leader to make a 
payment to the Lancashire Pension Authority to help 
reduce the extent of the Council’s pension liabilities that 
have amassed from previous years (£55.9m as at the 
31st March 2017); and 

 

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
193 

  (15) That the Council renews its short term loan to Barnfield 
& Hyndburn Ltd of £150,000 if required to assist our 
joint venture, manage its short term loan position with 
its Bank, while it continues to develop its site at Mill 
Gardens Great Harwood pending the arrival of receipts 
from sales. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 12



 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 22 March 2018 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Gareth Molineux - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Kirsten Burnett, Head of Human Resources 

TITLE OF REPORT: Draft Pay Policy 2018 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To present a draft Pay Policy for 2018/19. 
 
1.2 To highlight that this year’s draft Policy includes Gender Pay Gap information, and to 

explain the difference between the gender pay gap and equal pay. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Council approves the proposed policy. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Localism Act 2011 (Chapter 8 - Pay Accountability) requires all local authorities to 

set out its position on a range of issues relating to the remuneration of its employees.  
The Policy must be approved by the Council in open forum, by the end of March each 
year and then be published on its website. 

 
3.2 The Pay Policy sets out the existing approach to the remuneration of all posts within 

the Council.  In particular it specifies certain mandatory requirements that must be 
detailed within the Policy, as follows: 

 

 the pay structure of the Council and how it is set; 

 Senior Management Remuneration, providing details of the pay grade for posts defined 
as Chief Officer and the accompanying allowances; 

 the recruitment arrangements for a Chief Officer; 

 the relationship between the salaries of Chief Officers and other employees; 

 details of the lowest paid posts within the Council; 

 employer’s Pension Contribution details; and 

 termination of employment payments. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6.



 

 
3.3 The Council already publishes pay and remuneration details of its senior managers on 

its Website. 
 
3.4 The Policy includes the ratio of the pay of our highest paid employee (Chief Executive) 

to the median pay across the whole staff group.  This is 5:1.  The CIPD1 estimate that 
for FTSE100 companies, this is 138:1, excluding pensions and share-based pay. 

 
Gender Pay Gap 
 
3.5 The draft policy for has no significant changes compared to the current policy, other 

than the inclusion of Gender Pay Gap information.  This is also included in our 
Workforce report and we have reported on this to Government, in advance of the 
deadline of 30 March 2018. 

 
3.6 There is great deal of confusion running through current media reports and public 

statements around the relationship between equal pay, on one hand, and the 
requirement of gender pay gap reporting on the other.  They are being spoken and 
written about as though they are the same thing, which is not the case. 

 
3.7 The right of employees and other workers to equal pay originated with the Equal Pay 

Act 1975 and later was part of the Equality Act 2010.  This effectively inserts an 
equality clause into each worker’s contract and requires employers to ensure that they 
provide equality of pay and other contractual terms of employment between male and 
female employees.  Hyndburn maintains a recognised system of job evaluation which 
scores jobs against a number of factors (for example line management responsibilities, 
knowledge and skills, working conditions and exposure to risk).  This helps us ensure 
that staff are paid fairly for the role that they do, regardless of gender. 

 
3.8 The Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017, on the other 

hand, require large organisations to publish information, on an annual basis, about the 
average overall pay and median overall pay of their male and female employees.  They 
require organisations that are in scope to publish the required information within 12 
months of the “snapshot date” each year.  The snapshot date for public sector 
organisations is 31 March. 

 
3.9 The stated aim of the gender pay gap reporting legislation is to introduce greater levels 

of pay transparency.  The information must list the average overall pay and the median 
overall pay for men and women throughout the organisation, together with the 
proportions of men and women in each of four quartiles of the employer’s pay 
distribution (which each have to contain the same number of employees).  There is no 
obligation to publish the salaries or terms/conditions of any individual employees, nor 
to state job titles or grades. 

 
3.10 Although median and mean hourly pay excluding overtime provide useful comparisons 

of men’s and women’s earnings, they do not reveal differences in rates of pay for 
comparable jobs, and it is rates of pay for comparable jobs which are the focus of the 

                                                      
1
 https://www.cipd.co.uk/Images/7571-ceo-pay-in-the-ftse100-report-web_tcm18-26441.pdf 

Page 14



 

equal pay legislation.  Because gender pay gap data does not, and cannot, take 
account of job demands the headline figures should not be treated as an indicator of 
whether women are receiving equal pay for equal work. 

 
3.11 There is no requirement under the Regulations for employers to: 
 

 provide an explanation for any pay gap; 

 examine the causes of any pay gap; 

 conduct a pay review following the collection of the pay data; or 

 create an action plan to address any gender-based pay gap that is identified. 
 
3.12 Hyndburn Borough Council’s median gender pay gap is 2.7% for all employees.  The 

median figure is the ONS’s preferred measure of average earnings.  This gap is much 
lower than the national whole workforce gender pay gap which is reported by the ONS 
as 18.4%.   

 
3.13 Amongst the lowest paid quartile of staff, the mean pay gap is 3.4%.  This is partly 

because of a very small number of female staff – predominantly cleaners - occupying 
the very lowest paid roles.  These roles – as with all roles at the Council – are open to 
all applicants, regardless of gender.  We also have a significantly greater take-up of 
salary sacrifice options by female staff, which reduces their take-home pay and 
contributes to the gap.  These are primarily for childcare vouchers, purchasing unpaid 
leave and the home technology scheme.  These are valued employee benefits. 

 
3.14 The middle pay quartiles show only a very small pay gap, one in favour of male staff 

and one in favour of female staff. 
 
3.15 The largest mean pay gap is amongst the highest paid quartile, at 10.5%.  Because of 

how we have to calculate the figures, the staff hourly rates for the 71 staff included 
within the quartile start from staff within Scale 8 and go up to the Chief Executive.  
There is a difference of just over 4 times the hourly rate between the lowest and 
highest paid within this quartile.  At the top are the Chief Executive and Deputy, both of 
whom are male.  Within our annual Workforce Report, we report on the percentage of 
staff in the top 5% of earners who are female and for last year that figure was 34.92%.  
This explains the reasons for the larger pay gap.  A larger organisation would not have 
such a spread of hourly rates within a quartile.  

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 N/a 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 The draft Pay Policy has been shared with the Trade Unions and received no 

comments. 
 
  

Page 15



 

6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

The pay and remuneration detailed within the 
Pay Policy are all within the approved budget 
of the Council 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

The Pay Policy has been prepared to ensure 
the Council complies with the requirements of 
the Localism Act 2011. 

Assessment of risk 
 

 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

A CFA was completed before the policy was 
written in 2012.  There have been no 
significant changes which require this to be 
repeated. 

 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Localism Act 2011 – Chapter 8: 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/part/1/chapter/8/enacted 
 

Supplementary Guidance: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/openness-and-
accountability-in-local-pay-supplementary-guidance 

 

Page 16

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/part/1/chapter/8/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/openness-and-accountability-in-local-pay-supplementary-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/openness-and-accountability-in-local-pay-supplementary-guidance


 

Page 1 of 7 
 

Hyndburn Borough Council 
 

Pay Policy - 2018/19 
 
 
1. Purpose of the Policy 
 

 To maintain a transparent approach to the setting of the pay of the Council’s employees. 
 

 To comply with the requirements of the Localism Act, Section 38 – Pay Accountability. 
 
1.1 The Policy will detail: 
 

 The methods by which salaries of all employees are determined; 
 

 The details of the remuneration of the Council’s  most senior employees, i.e. Chief Officers; 
and 

 
 The relationship between the salary of the Council’s Chief Officers and other employees. 

 
2. Background 
  
2.1 The Localism Act 2011 (Chapter 8 - Pay Accountability) requires every local authority to set out 

its position on a range of issues relating to the remuneration of its employees. 
 
2.2 The policy will reflect, where appropriate, relevant aspects of existing Human Resources 

policies, such as the Council’s agreements on job evaluation and the redundancy policy. 
 
2.3 The policy must be approved by a meeting of full Council in open forum, by the end of March 

each year, and then be published on its website. 
 
3. Legislation relevant to Pay and Remuneration 
 
3.1 In determining the pay and remuneration of its employees, the Council will comply with all 

relevant employment legislation.  This includes the Equality Act 2010 and the Part Time 
Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000.  The Council will 
take reasonable steps to ensure that there is no pay discrimination within its pay structures and 
that pay differentials can be quantified through the application of its Job Evaluation Scheme. 

 
3.2 The Council operates the GLPC (Greater London Provincial Council) Scheme, including Chief 

Officers, for whom there is a specific version of this scheme.  The posts of Chief Executive, 
Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director have been evaluated in consultation with North 
West Employers Organisation. 

 
4. Pay Structure 
 
4.1 The Council complies with the nationally negotiated spinal column points for all posts, with the 

exception being those senior level posts referred to within the policy.  The salary grades that 
the Council applies for all other posts are at Appendix 1. 

 
4.2 Salary increases are set nationally, through collective bargaining between the national 

employers and trade unions. 

Page 17



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
4.3 The pay and grading structure for the majority of posts was established at the time of the job 

evaluation exercise completed in 2007.  Since 2007, all newly created posts and posts that 
have varied are subject to evaluation against the job evaluation scheme. 

 
5. Definitions  
 
5.1 The Localism Act refers to the position of Chief Officer and states that this refers to: the Head 

of Paid Service; Statutory Chief Officers; non-statutory Chief Officer posts and their direct 
reports (Deputy Chief Officers).  It should be noted that this definition is very broad, and takes 
account of Metropolitan and County Councils as well as District Councils. 

 
5.2 It is considered that the posts that the term Chief Officer applies to, at Hyndburn Borough 

Council, in relation to the Localism Act are the Chief Executive, the Deputy Chief Executive, 
who is also the Chief Finance and Section 151 Officer, and the Executive Director (Legal and 
Democratic Services), who is the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

 
5.3 Our annual Statement of Accounts also includes senior officers with a salary over £50,000, 

within the threshold for disclosure under the Accounts and Audit requirements. 
 
5.4 Remuneration is defined as the pay and rewards an individual receives.  Details are produced 

in the audited Statement of Accounts on an annual basis.  The last Statement of Accounts 
shows the position at 31 March 2017 and is published on the Council’s website1. 

 
6. Chief Executive / Corporate Director Remuneration 
 
6.1 The appointment and terms relating to the appointment were last reviewed in 2008.  This 

review involved obtaining guidance and advice from North West Employers Organisation. 
 
6.2 There are two director level posts reporting to the Chief Executive, one of whom is the Deputy 

Chief Executive.  The responsibilities of these senior officers are shown on the Council’s 
organisational structure charts, which are updated and published annually2. 

 
6.3 Details of remuneration are contained in the annual Statement of Accounts. 
 
6.4 Salary packages and severance payments over £100,000 will be brought to a meeting of full 

Council to be voted on.  Components of severance packages, where applicable, may include 
salary paid in lieu, redundancy compensation, pension entitlements, holiday pay and any 
bonuses, fees or allowances paid.  

 
6.5 The other terms and conditions of service relating to the post of Chief Executive are in 

accordance with the Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Executives of Local Authorities. 
 
7. Recruitment of Chief Executive and Chief Officers 
 
7.1 Under Section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the “power to appoint 

officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the authority thinks fit”. 
 
7.2 Where there is a requirement to recruit to the post of Chief Executive or Chief Officer, Section 

H of the Council’s Constitution will apply. 

                                                      
1
 https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/statement-of-accounts/ 

2
 https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/organisational-structure-chart/ 

Page 18

https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/organisational-structure-chart/


 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 
8. Salary upon Appointment  
 
8.1 All new appointments to a post of Chief Executive or Chief Officer will be made within the 

minimum and maximum spinal column points of the grade. 
 
9. Performance-related Pay 
 
9.1 The Localism Act requires Councils to provide details of any performance-related pay for its 

Chief Officers.  Hyndburn Borough Council does not have any such arrangements. 
 
10. Relationship between Chief Executive Pay and other Employees 
 
10.1 The relationship between the salaries of the Chief Executive and the median salary and the 

lowest paid salary are: 
 

Post Benchmark Salary Ratio 

Chief Executive salary median salary 1:5 

Chief Executive salary lowest salary 1:7 

 
Median salary = £22,658 
Lowest salary = £16,881 
 

11. Lowest Paid Employees 
 
11.1 The Council complies with the National Joint Council – Pay and Conditions of Service.  The 

minimum salary the Council pays is in accordance with the Living Wage, which at present 
equates to £16,881 per annum (see Appendix 1).  The positions that this salary applies to is 
Cleaners, Gallery Assistants, Duty Officers, Clerical Support Assistant and Courier (tbc). 

 
11.2 Progression through the grade occurs through the payment of an additional annual increment 

on 1 April, each year. 
 
11.3 Part-time posts are paid the same salary, but on a pro-rata basis. 
 
12. Gender Pay Gap  
 
12.1 Employers in Great Britain with more than 250 staff are now required by the Equality Act 2010 

(Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017 to publish the following four types of figures 
annually on their own website and on a government website.  The deadline for public sector 
employers is 30 March 2018 and the Council has already reported the following figures, from 
31 March 2017: 

 
 Gender pay gap (mean and median averages); 
 Gender bonus gap (mean and median averages); 
 Proportion of men and women receiving bonuses; and 
 Proportion of men and women in each quartile of the organisation’s pay structure. 
 
12.2 The median gender pay gap is 2.7% for all employees.  The median figure is the ONS’s 

preferred measure of average earnings. 
 
12.3 This gap is much lower than the national whole workforce gender pay gap which is reported by 

the ONS as 18.4%. 

Page 19



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

 

Gender Pay gap Median Mean 

Hourly rate 2.7% 6.2% 

Bonus 0 0 

 
12.3 Proportion of Males and Females in each quartile pay band 
 

Quartile  Male Female Mean Pay Gap 

1 – lowest paid 49.3% 50.7% 3.4% 

2 58.6% 41.4% 1.8% 

3 60% 40% -1.6% 

4 – highest paid 56.3% 43.7% 10.5% 

 
12.4 We are committed to the principle of equal pay for all our employees, and our job evaluation 

system means we can be confident as reasonably possible that men and women are paid 
equally for doing equivalent jobs. 

 
13. Termination Payments 
 
13.1 The Council’s Redundancy Policy applies equally to all permanent employees regardless of 

their grade.  A redundancy payment will be paid to an employee when their post is made 
redundant and there are no suitable redeployment opportunities. 

 
12.2 For all permanent employees where there is the option for early retirement, the Council’s Policy 

on Discretionary Compensation will apply where appropriate. 
 
13. Employer Pension Contribution 
  
13.1 The Council contributes to the Local Government Pension Scheme for all its employees 

equally 28% of an employee’s salary.  This rate of contribution is set by Actuaries advising the 
Lancashire Pension Fund and is reviewed on a triennial basis. 

 
14. Employee Pension Contribution 
 
14.1 Employees in the Local Government Pension Scheme pay at present the annual contributions 

shown in the table below, based upon their salary.  
 

Band Actual pensionable pay 
Employee contribution rate 

(%) 
1 Up to £13,700 5.5 
2 £13,701- £21,400 5.8 
3 £21,401- £34,700 6.5 
4 £34,701- £43,900 6.8 
5 £43,901- £61,300 8.5 
6 £61,301- £86,800 9.9 
7 £86,801- £102,200 10.5 

8 £102,201-£153,300 11.4 

9 More than £153,301 12.5 

 
  

Page 20



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

15. Publication of the Policy 
 
15.1 The Policy will be published on the Council’s Website, by April 2018, following its approval by 

the Council. 
 
16. Review of Pay Policy 
 
16.1 The Policy will be subject to annual review and must be approved by the Council prior to 31 

March each year.  If there is a need to amend the Policy between reviews, then any such 
amendments will be considered by the Cabinet, prior to approval by the Council. 

Page 21



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Appendix 1: Pay Scales 
NJC Pay Scales: 1st April 2017 

Salary Range / grade SCP Salary (£) 
Monthly Salary 

(£) 
Hourly Rate 

(£) 

* Living Wage Rate Scale 3a (or 
grades below) 

  16881 1,406.78 8.75 

  15 17072 1,422.67 8.85 

Scale 3b 
  

16 17419 1,451.58 9.03 

17 17772 1,481.00 9.21 

Scale 4 
  
  
  

18 18070 1,505.83 9.37 

19 18746 1,562.17 9.72 

20 19430 1,619.17 10.07 

21 20138 1,678.17 10.44 

Scale 5 
  
  
  

22 20661 1,721.75 10.71 

23 21268 1,772.33 11.02 

24 21962 1,830.17 11.38 

25 22658 1,888.17 11.74 

Scale 6 
  
  

26 23398 1,949.83 12.13 

27 24174 2,014.50 12.53 

28 24964 2,080.33 12.94 

Scale 7 
  
  

29 25951 2,162.58 13.45 

30 26822 2,235.17 13.90 

31 27668 2,305.67 14.34 

Scale 8 

 32 28485 2,373.75 14.76 

Scale 9 

33 29323 2,443.58 15.20 

34 30153 2,512.75 15.63 

 
35 30785 2,565.42 15.96 

Scale 10  

36 31601 2,633.42 16.38 

 37 32486 2,707.17 16.84 

Scale 11 

38 33437 2,786.42 17.33 

39 34538 2,878.17 17.90 

 
40 35444 2,953.67 18.37 

 
41 36379 3,031.58 18.86 

Scale 12 

42 37306 3,108.83 19.34 

43 38237 3,186.42 19.82 

44 39177 3,264.75 20.31 

45 40057 3,338.08 20.76 

  46 41025 3,418.75 21.26 

Service Managers 

47 41967 3,497.25 21.75 

48 42899 3,574.92 22.24 

49 43821 3,651.75 22.71 

50 44746 3,728.83 23.19 

* Living wage rate increased annually in November 
 
 

Page 22



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

JNC PAY SCALES 1 April 2017 
 

Salary Range  SCP Salary (£) 
Monthly Salary 

(£) 
Hourly Rate 

(£) 

Chief Officers (1) 
  
  
  
  

JNC16 52,594 4382.81 27.26 

JNC17 53,908 4492.31 27.94 

JNC18 55,233 4602.74 28.63 

JNC19 56,534 4711.15 29.30 

JNC20 57,851 4820.90 29.99 

Chief Officers (2) 
  
  
  
  

JNC21 48,278 4023.17 25.02 

JNC22 49,364 4113.65 25.59 

JNC23 50,575 4214.56 26.21 

JNC24 51,767 4313.88 26.83 

JNC25 52,978 4414.79 27.46 

 

 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
143 

 
CABINET 

 

 
Wednesday, 3rd January, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson (in the Chair), Councillors Paul Cox and 

Gareth Molineux 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Tony Dobson, Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan and Jenny Molineux 

  

Apologies: Councillors Clare Cleary, Munsif Dad and Ken Moss 
 

 
283 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Clare Cleary, Munsif Dad and Ken 
Moss. 
 

284 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

285 Minutes of Cabinet 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 6th December 2017 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

286 Reports of Cabinet Members 
 
There were no reports. 
 

287 Council Tax Base 2018 - 2019 
 
The Leader of the Council (Councillor Miles Parkinson) submitted a report relating to the 
Council Tax Base for the financial year 2018/2019.  In accordance with Section 35 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council was required to formally determine the 
Council Tax Base for 2018/2019 prior to 31st January 2018.  That determination allowed the 
Council to notify the major preceptors (Lancashire County Council, the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Lancashire and Lancashire Combined Fire Authority) by 31st January of 
the Council Tax Base.  The requisite calculations for Hyndburn and Altham (attached as 
Appendices A and B respectively to the report) had to be carried out in accordance with the 
Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012 and once determined, 
could not be changed.  That Base had to be used when the Council set the levels of 
Council Tax for the year 2018/2019.  It was proposed that the Tax Base for Hyndburn for 
the financial year 2018/2019 be 20,506 which was an increase from last year’s Tax Base of 
309 (20,197) and that the 2018/2019 Tax Base for Altham be 314 which was an increase 
from last year’s Tax Base of 9 (305).      A Customer First Analysis (Equality and Diversity 
Implications) was attached at Appendix C to the report.  Approval of the report was not 
deemed a key decision. 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7.



 
 
 

 

 
144 

Reasons for Decision 
 
It was a statutory requirement to set a Council Tax Base. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
Failure to set a Council Tax Base was not an option. 

Resolved (1) That the report be approved;  

 (2) That in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 2012, the amount 
calculated by the Council as its Council Tax Base for 
the financial year 2018/2019 be 20,506;  and,  

 (3) That in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 2012, the amount 
calculated by the Council for its Council Tax Base for 
the Parish of Altham for the financial year 2018/2019 be 
314. 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
assist in the development of the Local Plan for Hyndburn. 
 

288 Green Belt Assessment 
 
The Leader of the Council submitted a report relating to the Green Belt Assessment being 
undertaken to inform the development of the Local Plan for Hyndburn.  Approval of the 
report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
1) The Council was preparing a Local Plan for Hyndburn and it was necessary to 
undertake a Green Belt Assessment.  An assessment had not been undertaken since the 
Local Plan was adopted in 1996 and the assessment would form an essential part of the 
evidence needed in the development of the Site Allocations Development Plan Document 
and for the Masterplan that would be prepared in 2018 for the future development of the 
Huncoat Zone.  The assessment would identify general areas of Green Belt before 
identifying more detailed parcels that abutted the urban boundary. 
 
2) At this stage, the Green Belt assessment would not be identifying land that should 
be taken out of the Green Belt or land that should remain in the Green Belt, it was simply an 
assessment against the five purposes set out by the National Planning Policy.  In 
determining whether to allocate land for development, it was necessary to take into account 
a wide range of factors, one of which would be the findings of the assessment if the site 
was within the Green Belt. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
A large portion of the Borough was designated Green Belt and an assessment would form 
an important part of the evidence base for the review of the Core Strategy, the Site 
Allocations Development Plan Document and the Huncoat Masterplan.  If a Green Belt 
assessment was not undertaken, it was likely to be difficult to defend decisions relating to 
areas of Green Belt, for example, in cases where developers were seeking to take land out 

Page 26



 
 
 

 

 
145 

of the Green Belt that the Council wished to retain in the Green Belt, or where the Council 
believed land should be taken out of the Green Belt.  If an assessment of the Green Belt 
was not undertaken, there was a risk that the Plan might not be found “sound” by an 
Inspector. 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted and a further report be 

presented to Cabinet setting out the findings of the 
Green Belt assessment when it had been completed. 

 
 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the most up to date information was provided. 
 

289 Financial Position October 2017/18  -  Report for the Year Ending 31st March 2018 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report on the financial spending of the 
Council up to the end of October 2017 and the financial forecast outturn position for the 
Accounting Year 2017/18.  The financial detail of the report was shown as a table at the 
end of the report.  Spend for the first seven months of the financial year was £6,097,838 
compared to a Budget of £6,336,009 giving a positive variance of £238,000.  The current 
forecast spend to the end of the financial year in March 2018 was £10,986,000 compared to 
a Budget of £11,197,000.  That forecast produced a positive variance of £211,000.  The 
main areas of financial pressure were Parks and Cemeteries and Regeneration and 
Property Services.  Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
To inform Cabinet of the financial spending of the Council at the end of October 2017 and 
the prediction of the outturn position to the end of the financial year in March 2018. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted and Corporate Management 

Team be asked to look to reduce costs and increase 
income over the remainder of the year to improve the 
Council’s overall financial position. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
166 

 
CABINET 

 

 
Wednesday, 14th February, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson (in the Chair), Councillors Clare Cleary, 

Paul Cox, Munsif Dad and Gareth Molineux 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Tony Dobson, Terry Hurn, Eamonn Higgins, Jenny Molineux 
and Judith Addison 

  

Apologies: Councillor Ken Moss 
 

 
330 Apology for Absence 

 
An apology for absence was submitted from Councillor Moss. 
 

331 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

332 Minutes of Cabinet 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 3rd January 2018 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record.  
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

333 Minutes of Boards, Panels and Working Groups 
 
The Minutes of the following meetings were submitted:- 
 
a) Local Plan Member Working Group – 23rd October 2017 
b) Regeneration and Housing Panel  -  20th November 2017 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 

334 Reports of Urgent Cabinet Decisions 
 
The following reports relating to the use of Urgent Cabinet Decision Procedures were 
submitted for noting: 
 
a) To Waive the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules for a Replacement Fire Alarm at the 

Haworth Art Gallery. 
b)  Fire Safety 
c)  Fire Safety – Elmfield Hall, Church 
 
Resolved - That the Urgent Cabinet Decisions be noted. 
 
 

335 Reports of Cabinet Members 

Page 29



 
 
 

 

 
167 

 
There were no reports. 
 

336 Core Strategy Review and Site Allocations Development Plan Document  -  
Regulation 18(1) Consultation 
 

The Leader of the Council submitted a report relating to work continuing on preparation of 

the new Local Plan for Hyndburn. Once completed, the documents would replace the final 

saved elements of the 1996 Local Plan. 

   

The report was intended to explain the context and content of three consultation documents 

proposed to be the subject of a public consultation exercise to be commenced in late 

February. This would form part of the initial preparation phase of the Site Allocations DPD 

and Core Strategy review (under Regulation 18 of the Town Country Planning (Local 

Planning) (England) Regulations 2012). 

 

Reasons for Decision 

 

The Local Plan was the long-term development framework for the area. The Core Strategy 

provided the strategic overarching planning policy framework for the Borough.  The need for 

a review of the Core Strategy was set out in the report and a review of the Core Strategy 

would be twin-tracked alongside preparation of the final part of the new Local Plan, the Site 

Allocations DPD.  Two stages of consultation would be undertaken under Regulation 18 

(Preparation) and each stage would be presented to Cabinet and/or Council for approval at 

the relevant time, and the Local Plan Working Group would continue to meet on a regular 

basis to help steer the development of the Local Plan. Stage 2 of the Regulation 18 

(Preparation) phase was currently anticipated to be in early 2019, with Submission planned 

for 2020 which would then commence the independent examination process. A more 

detailed project plan would be prepared by Officers in support of this work and brought to 

Cabinet at a later date. 
 

Three documents were recommended for public consultation: the first two related to the 

review of the Core Strategy; the third related to the Site Allocations DPD. As part of the 

publicity process and communication in relation to the consultation, it was also proposed to 

notify all interested parties of the closure of the ‘Call for Sites’ exercise that had been open 

and ongoing for some years now. This would enable the Council to collate a definitive list of 

all site submissions in readiness for site assessments to be undertaken at the next stage. 
 

Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 

 

The Core Strategy Review and Site Allocations DPD was being prepared in accordance 

with the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. As the 

preparation of this document was to be in accordance with this legal framework there were 

no alternative options for its preparation. 

Resolved (1) That the key stages of preparation for both the Core 
Strategy Review and the Site Allocations DPD, the final 
parts of the new Local Plan for Hyndburn be noted;  

Page 30



 
 
 

 

 
168 

 (2) That the content of the Core Strategy Review and Site 
Allocations DPD consultation documents and 
commencement to a 6-week statutory consultation 
process be approved; and,  

 (3) That authority be delegated to the Executive Director 
(Legal and Democratic Services) and the Chief Planning 
and Transportation Officer, in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Planning, to make any further 
changes considered necessary or appropriate to the 
consultation documents, prior to commencing 
consultation. 

 
337 Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 2018/19 to 

2020/2021 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Gareth Molineux) submitted a report setting 
out the Council’s policy and objectives with respect to treasury management, explaining 
how it would achieve its objectives and manage its activities; and to agree an investment 
strategy for 2018/19.   
 
The Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 2018/19 and the Treasury Management 
Policy Statement 2018/19 were attached to the report as Appendices 1 and 2 respectively.  
The Treasury Management Practices 2018/19 were set out in Paragraph 14 of the report 
and Appendix 3.  
 
The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities was a professional code which 
set out the framework for self-regulation of capital spending and financing.  It allowed 
councils to invest in capital projects without any limit as long as such investment was 
affordable, prudent and sustainable.  The Code was produced by Cipfa and required the 
Council to agree and monitor a minimum number of prudential indicators (including limits 
and statements) which related to affordability, prudence, capital expenditure, external debt 
and treasury management.  The indicators were purely for internal use and were not 
designed to be used as comparators between councils. 
 
The Council was also required to set out its Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 
for borrowing and investment activities and the effective management of associated risks, in 
accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (Cipfa) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management in Public Services, as revised or supplemented by Cipfa 
from time to time. 
 
The following aspects were addressed in the report:- 
 

 Prudential Code and Prudential Indicators 

 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing Requirement 

 Estimated Capital Expenditure 

 Minimum Revenue Provision 

 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

 Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19 – 2020/21 

 External Debt Overall Limits 

 External v Internal Borrowing 

 Limits on Activity 

 Debt Rescheduling 

 Investment Strategy 

 Treasury Management Practices 

 Policy on the Use of External Service Providers 

Page 31



 
 
 

 

 
169 

 Treasury Management Strategy In-Year and Year End Reporting 

 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
(1) Treasury management was defined as the management of the Council’s investment 
and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions, the effective 
control of the risks associated with those activities and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks. 
 
(2) The Council was required to operate a balanced budget which meant that cash 
raised during the year would meet cash expenditure.  Part of treasury management was to 
ensure the cash flow was properly planned with cash available when needed.  Surplus 
monies were invested in line with the Council’s low risk preferences. 
 
(3) The second function of treasury management was funding the Council’s capital 
plans.  The plans gave a guide to the future borrowing need of the Council.  The 
management of that longer term cash flow might involve arranging long or short term loans 
or using longer term cash flow surpluses.  Occasionally, outstanding debt might be 
restructured to reduce Council risk or meet cost objectives. 
 
(4) The report had been prepared in line with the Treasury Management Code and 
Guidance (2013) written by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(Cipfa).  In the case of local authorities in England and Wales, the Code was significant 
under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2003.  That required local authorities ‘to 
have regard (a) to such guidance as the Secretary of State might issue, and (b) to such 
other guidance as the Secretary of State might by regulations specify’.  Paragraph 24 of the 
Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 required 
local authorities to have regard to that guidance and acceptance of the report fulfilled those 
obligations. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved - That Council be recommended to:- 
 
  (i) Adopt the prudential indicators and limits detailed 

in the report; 
 
  (ii) Approve the Treasury Management Strategy and 

associated indicators, as set out in Section 8 of the 
report;  

 
  (iii) Approve the Investment Strategy, as set out in 

Section 13 of the report;  
 
  (iv) Approve the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 

for the year 2018/19, as set out in Appendix 1 of the 
report; 

 
  (v) Approve the Treasury Management Policy 

Statement 2018/19, as set out in Appendix 2 of the 
report;  

 

Page 32



 
 
 

 

 
170 

  (vi) Approve the Treasury Management Practices 
Statement 2018/19, as set out in Appendix 3 of the 
report. 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100b(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the most up to date information available is provided. 
 

338 Financial Position December 2017/18  -  Report for Year Ending 31st March 2018 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report relating to the financial spending of 
the Council at the end of December 2017 and the financial forecast outturn position for the 
Accounting Year 2017/18.  The financial detail of the report was appended to the report.  
The spend against Budget in the nine months of the year was £7,820,713 against a Budget 
of £8,156,995 leaving a positive variance of £336,282.  The forecast spend for the year to 
31st March 2018 was £10,811,541 against a Budget of £11,096,223.  This forecast 
produces a positive variance of £284,000.  The main areas of financial pressure are Parks 
& Cemeteries and Regeneration and Property Services.      The current estimate for the 
year is a £238,000 positive variance.  Approval of the report was not deemed a key 
decision.   
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
To inform Cabinet of the financial spending of the Council at the end of December 2017 and 
the prediction of the outturn position to the end of the financial year in March 2018.  
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted and Corporate Management 

Team be asked to reduce costs and increase income 
over the remainder of the year to improve the Council’s 
overall financial position.     

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100b(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the most up to date information available is provided. 
 

339 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2020/21 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report relating to the three year projections 
of income and spending for the Council ahead of formulating its 2018/19 Revenue and 
Capital Budget.  The Medium Term Financial Strategy was attached to the report and set 
out for the next three years:- 
 
(a) The way in which the Council went about its financial planning processes, especially 
in relation to the corporate budget planning cycle, which was subject to the Budget and 
Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 
 
(b) An updated action plan for the process and arrangements for reporting on progress 
to date in formulating and updating future years’ budgets.  Specifically the report updated 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy presented to Cabinet in October 2017. 
 
Appendix 1 of the background to the current budget predictions in figures to give an idea of 
commitments, funding and potential Council Tax levels.  Two further scenarios were 
provided in Appendices 2 and 3 to outline the potential range of values over the coming 

Page 33



 
 
 

 

 
171 

period.  Appendix 2 indicated the outer level of what the Council could face in a pessimistic 
future, whilst Appendix 3 showed an optimistic forecast based on many things going in the 
Council’s favour over the next three years.  The figures in Appendix 1 however remained 
the current best estimate of the likely financial position over the next three years. 
 
The following aspects were addressed in the Strategy:- 
 

 Introduction 

 Objectives 

 Elements of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Service Planning to Support Overall Strategy 

 Integrated Resource Planning with Service Plans 

 Background Information 

 Financial Analysis 2018/19 to 2020/21 

 Resources 

 Government Grant 

 Changes in Costs 

 Pension Costs 

 Supplies and Service Costs 

 Capital Costs 

 Growth 

 Reserves 

 Other Assumptions 

 Equality Impact Assessment 

 Scenarios 

 Robustness of Forecast 

 Overall Net Position 

 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
Cabinet required an update on its medium term financial outlook ahead of setting the 
Budget for 2018/19 and determining the level of Council Tax.  The report also ensured 
those decisions were taken with a view to the overall position of the Council going forward 
and were not limited to a narrow one year perspective. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved - That the report and accompanying Medium Term 

Financial Strategy (MTFS) be approved.  
 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up-to-date information was included in the report 
 

340 Revenue Budget 2018/19 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report setting out proposals for the 2018/19 
General Fund Revenue Budget.  The report also provided an overview of key issues which 
had arisen from the Medium Term Financial Strategy.  The decision to set the Budget would 
be a key decision of the Council and the role of the Cabinet was to recommend a proposed 
Budget to Council.  The 2018/19 Revenue Budget required a net expenditure of 
£11,174,000 and under the budget proposals, Council Tax for Hyndburn residents would 
rise by £5.00 per year for a band D property.  The amounts due for each band are shown in 
Appendix 4 of the report.  Altham Parish Council had issued a separate precept 

Page 34



 
 
 

 

 
172 

requirement for its activities but does not intend to increase its precept.  The following 
information was attached to the report:- 
 
Appendix 1  -  Initial Outline Budget 2018/19 
Appendix 2  -  Revenue Budget 2018/19 
Appendix 3  -  Saving Proposals 2018/19 
Appendix 4  -  Hyndburn Borough Council Tax Increase 2018/19 by Property Band 
Appendix 5  -  Overall Change in Council Tax 2018/19 
Appendix 6  -  Altham Parish Precept 2018/19 by Property Valuation Band 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The recommendations in the report provided an appropriate platform on which the Cabinet 
could recommend a Budget for the Council which met the objectives and key priorities of 
the people of Hyndburn. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
A wide number of individual proposals had been put forward to produce a Balanced Budget.  
Options had been rejected on a variety of grounds including policy objectives, practicalities 
and the potential for additional costs to be incurred.  Further options might be presented at 
the Council meeting on 22nd February 2018. 

Resolved (1) That an increase in Council Tax for 2018/19 by £5.00 per 
year for a Band D property be recommended.  This 
would be equivalent to less than 10 pence per week and 
as most households in Hyndburn are Band a rather than 
Band D properties, the vast majority of households 
would only see a rise of 7p per week.  That the Budget 
for 2018/19 would therefore be £11,174,000 as detailed 
in Appendices 1 and 2; 

 (2) That it be recommended that the list of savings and 
budget changes for 2018/19, as set out in Appendix 3 of 
the report, be approved;  

 (3) That the significant improvements made in relation to 
budget monitoring and cost reduction within the 
Authority over the past 14 years be noted and the 
commitment to continuing that approach in the year 
ahead be confirmed;  

 (4) That it be recommended that during the financial year 
2018/19, the Deputy Chief Executive be delegated 
responsibility to amend the Budget (following 
consultation with the Leader of the Council) for 
technical reasons, such as the restructuring of cost 
centres, the re-apportionment and re-allocation of 
overheads, etc., provided such amendments had an 
overall neutral impact on the Budget;  

 (5) That it be recommended that during the financial year 
2018/19 the Deputy Chief Executive be delegated 
responsibility to amend the Budget (following 

Page 35



 
 
 

 

 
173 

consultation with the Leader of the Council) should the 
estimate of Business Rates not be sufficiently accurate, 
by drawing on reserves if needed or paying over 
additional contributions to reserves;  

                              (6) That to aid future financial management planning, any 
surpluses generated during 2018/19 be set aside to help 
the Council to reduce its cost base over the next three 
years, support its long term capital programme or 
strengthen its overall reserve position;  and,  

 (7) That it be recommended that the New Homes Bonus and 
any additional unring-fenced funding from the 
Government, as well as any further surplus on the 
Collection Fund, can be used if required to support 
Capital expenditure as determined by the Deputy Chief 
Executive in the overall financing of capital expenditure 
or be transferred to Reserves. 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up to date information was included in the report 
 
 

341 Capital Budget 2018/19 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report inviting Cabinet to consider the 
Council’s capital investment priorities for 2018/19 and to recommend to the Council a 
capital programme for approval at its meeting on 22nd February 2018, having regard to key 
linkages between the management of the Council’s capital and revenue resources.  A 
Capital Programme for 2018/19 of £5 million was appended to the report.  Approval of the 
report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The schemes represented the best value for money and met the Council’s overall corporate 
policy objectives, within the funding envelop for the year. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
A wider programme of funding had not been considered due to the Council’s policy 
commitment to limiting Capital Expenditure to affordable levels and seeking to repay debt. 

Resolved - That the following proposals be submitted to Council:-  

  (1) A Capital Programme for 2018/19 of £4,939,283 as 
set out in Appendix 1 of the report;  

  (2) That the Programme be funded by anticipated 
direct external grants and other funding streams of 
£1,853,559 along with scheme funding from other 
sources of £947,693 and £2,138,031 of new investment 
from the Council’s resources.  External grant funding 
must be secured before any internal funds are 
committed to projects that rely on external funding to 
proceed;  

Page 36



 
 
 

 

 
174 

  (3) That authority be delegated to the Deputy Chief 
Executive, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Resources, to flex the programme in accordance with 
the available funding, provided that does not require 
any additional borrowing;  

  (4) That the individual projects within the Capital 
Programme require the written authorisation of the 
Deputy Chief Executive, following consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Resources, before commencing and 
incurring expenditure and that Service Managers 
provide the Deputy Chief Executive with written details 
of estimated costs of schemes with full justification of 
the need and benefits from undertaking the capital 
investments before approval was provided and that 
approval to commence be delegated to the Deputy Chief 
Executive, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Resources;  

  (5) That projects be timed to minimise the need for 
borrowing and the Deputy Chief Executive be requested 
to seek project start dates after September 2018 
whenever that was practical;  and,  

  (6) That in-year underspends are not made available 
to fund new projects during the year. 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
enable the implementation of the proposed reductions in February and March 2018. 
 

342 Market Hall Rents and Charges Review 
 

The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration submitted a report to inform Cabinet of 
proposals to carry out a comprehensive review of rents and charges at Accrington’s 
markets and to seek approval for a fifty per cent rent and service charge reduction for 
February and March 2018 for long term Market Hall businesses that are not benefitting from 
any current incentives or concessions. 

Reasons for Decision 
 
It is a significant number of years since Accrington Market rents and charges (indoor and 
outdoor) were formally reviewed and valued.  In recent years Accrington town centre retail 
rents have decreased as a direct result of a decline in town centre shopping.  Whilst market 
trading is a different offer to the high street store, traders have options and make charging 
comparisons.  In addition, many Markets, including some local, have reviewed their 
charges.  In the circumstances, it is important that we review the current charging structure 
at Accrington’s Market to ensure they reflect the wider trading environment and, at the 
same time, ensure the long term viability and sustainability of Accrington Markets. 
 
A review of Accrington Market’s charges is underway led by a Cabinet Working Group with 
the aim of concluding the review in the spring of 2018 and then to report the findings of the 
review with recommendations back to Cabinet. 
 

Page 37



 
 
 

 

 
175 

Accrington indoor market is occupied by a significant number of long term tenants who 
have operated alongside a number of newer tenants on incentive rates.  As per the Portfolio 
Holder’s recent announcement at the Full Council meeting on the 11th January 2018 it is 
proposed to grant a 50% rent and service charge reduction for February and March 2018 
only to eligible tenants acknowledging their long term commitment to Accrington Markets 
and town centre. 
 
The proposal will therefore benefit indoor traders on the Market Hall ground floor and the 
Kiosk lease holders subject to the eligibility criteria.  Any eligible trader with the equivalence 
to one month’s arrears or more will have their discount credited to their account to reduce 
any arrears. 
 

Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
Values and charging options will be fully considered as part of the rents and charging 
review to be carried out: 

Resolved  (1) That a Cabinet Working Group carries out a 
comprehensive rent and charging review at Accrington 
indoor and outdoor markets to be completed by Spring 
2018;  and  

  (2) That a 50% rent and service charge reduction for 
indoor Market Hall and Kiosk tenants for the months of 
February and March 2018, only as per the criteria set out 
in paragraph 3.4 of the report, be approved. 

  
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
meet the timescale involved in the disposal of the Council’s interest in the site to the 
preferred bidder. 
 

343 Proposed Disposal of the Steiner Street Site, Accrington 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing submitted a report to inform Cabinet of the interest 
and bids received for the Steiner Street site in Accrington (as set out in Appendix 1 of the 
report) and to seek Cabinet’s approval to dispose of the Council’s interest in the site to the 
preferred bid as set out in the report. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
Over the last twelve months the Council has been actively marketing the Steiner Street site 
as a potential development opportunity.  The net development area of the site is 
approximately 1.52 acres including all existing adopted highways and existing services. 
 
The site is a cleared site of former terraced housing but not allocated within the local plan, 
but Local Plan Policy allows for residential and employment development where the 
character of the land area is not detrimentally affected and potentially enhanced given its 
location on the main access route into Accrington town centre.  The site is on the edge of 
Accrington town centre and therefore any proposals for retail, including trade, would be 
subject to a sequential test. 
 
The Council has very recently updated its valuation of the site.  It is clear from the bids 
submitted (refer to ‘3.4’ below) there is no interest from the market for the site at the 
estimated open market values.  Over recent months the Council has received four 

Page 38



 
 
 

 

 
176 

bids/expressions of interest for the Steiner Street site and after careful consideration 
Cabinet are invited to support bid “A”. 
 
Subject to Cabinet’s consideration of the recommendations and subsequent decision, the 
Head of Regeneration and Housing can explore with the unsuccessful bidders other 
possible locations within the Borough where their project proposals can be supported. 
 
The bid is less than the Council’s view of the market value. However, the Council is 
permitted to sell land at an under value if it is satisfied that a disposal promotes the social, 
environmental or economic wellbeing of the Borough or part of it or its residents.  In this 
particular case, the proposed disposal meets the wellbeing criteria. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The Council could consider not selling the site; however, this option is not recommended 
because the proposed disposal provides the Council with an opportunity to generate a 
capital receipt, and at the same time, redevelop the area for the social, environmental and 
economic wellbeing of the Borough. 
 
Resolved                            (1)  That the proposed disposal of the Steiner Street  site to 

Bid A be supported; 

 (2)  That approval be given to the advertisement of the 
Council’s intention to dispose of public open space in 
accordance with Section 123(2A) of the Local 
Government Act 1972; and, 

(3)  That authority be delegated to the Head of 
Regeneration and Housing to consider any responses 
to the advertisement of the disposal of land received 
and, following consultation with the Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and Regeneration, to decide whether to 
proceed with the disposal of the Steiner Street site; 

(4)  That, subject to a decision being taken to proceed with 
the sale of the Steiner Street site, authorisation be 
given to the Head of Regeneration and Housing to 
dispose to bidder A, subject to the exchange of 
contracts and the conditions as set out in the report; 

(5)  That approval be given to dispose of the Council’s 
interest in the Steiner Street site at less than market 
value; 

(6)  That authority be delegated to the Head of 
Regeneration and Housing, in consultation with the 
Executive Director (Legal and Democratic Services) to 
enter into final negotiations with bidder A to agree and 
finalise terms for the disposal of the Council’s interest 
in the Steiner Street site; 

(7)  That the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 
Services) be authorised to finalise and execute all legal 
documents and arrangements to secure the disposal of 
the Steiner Street site to bidder A; 

Page 39



 
 
 

 

 
177 

(8)  That the Head of Regeneration and Housing be 
authorised to explore and work with the remaining 
bidders to bring forward their project proposals on 
other Council owned land, wherever possible. 

 
 
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 40



 

 
140 

 
COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
Wednesday, 20th December, 2017 

 
Present:  Councillor Glen Harrison (in the Chair),  

Councillors Bernadette Parkinson (Vice Chair), Mohammad Ayub, 
Loraine Cox and Eamonn Higgins 
 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Miles Parkinson – Observer 
Lisa Cunliffe, Michelle Pilling & Rachel Warkin (NHS East Lancashire 
Clinical Commissioning Group) 
Lesley Patel & Andrew Simpson (NHS England) 

  

Apologies: Abdul Khan and Kath Pratt 
 

 
278 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Abdul Khan and Kath Pratt. 
 
Councillor Eamonn Higgins acted as substitute representative for Councillor Khan.   
 

279 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
The Chair, Councillor Glen Harrison declared a personal interest in agenda item 5 as he 
was employed by Mersey Care. A standards Committee held in January 2017 had provided 
the Chair with a dispensation for the next four years to speak on this topic but not vote. 
 
 

280 Minutes of Last Meeting Held on 25th October 2017 
 
The Minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 
25th October 2017 were submitted for approval as a correct record.  
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

281 Care Navigation Pilot 
 
A presentation was given on the Care Navigation Pilot delivered by East Lancashire Clinical 
Commissioning Group. 
 
The information presented explained what care navigation was and why it was introduced 
into local health services. Details also included who could be a care navigator, the types of 
questioning involved by NHS staff, extending it into other primary care services and the 
range of benefits. 
 
A detailed summary of the pilot was provided along with the next steps of the process.  
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 8.



 
 
 

 

 
141 

Research for the pilot had been gained via on site visits to West Wakefield and negative 
stories in the media about the scheme were discussed at length and answered. 
 
A range of advanced questions had been submitted by Members before the meeting and a 
number of answers were provided to these questions asked by the Chair. 
 

 When the pilot was announced, there was a largely negative public reaction. How 
have the public reacted during the pilot? 

 
There had been no negative feedback from patients in the Hyndburn area to date and 
patient participation groups had been attended for consultation purposes. 
 

 Have you identified any faults during the pilot, and if so, have you corrected these? 
 
Website pages had been looked at to identify any grey areas or gaps and a call 
management system had been installed at some practices along with automated arrival 
screens. 
 

 How are issues regarding privacy resolved when patients are asked for information 
about their symptoms / condition? 

 
There are already protocols in place to deal with privacy issues and telephone 
conversations are normally conducted in a back office away from the frontline reception. 
 

 What does the care navigator training entail? How have staff reacted to their new 
roles as care navigators? 
 

 Is the system working? E.g. how many GP appointments have been freed up as a 
result of the care navigation pilot? 

 
It had been three months since Hyndburn went live along with Rossendale and the Ribble 
Valley. Monthly data was collected and verbal feedback locally had been positive. 
 

 There was a recent national news article which stated that a third of GP surgeries 
plan to close to new patients. How accurate is this figure and how many Hyndburn 
based surgeries are planning to close the registration of new patients? 

 

Resolved (1) That the presentation on Care Navigation by East 
Lancashire CCG be noted by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Communities and Wellbeing Committee; 

 (2) That Councillors are nominated to attend the Care 
Navigation Training with dates, times and locations to 
be confirmed. 

 
282 Transforming Care Update 

 
Andrew Simpson and Lesley Patel, gave a presentation to update Members on NHS 
England’s Transforming Care service. 
Previously the Committee had received the last presentation from NHS England in 
February 2017. Meetings had since taken place in relation to the consultation for the 
proposed redesign of learning disability and autistic spectrum disorder services in the North 
West region. 

Page 42



 
 
 

 

 
142 

 
The proposed redesign of services had direct implications for Mersey Care, based at the  
Whalley site (Formally Calderstones). NHS England’s preferred option after consultation  
involved the removal of both medium and low secure services from the Calderstones  
location. 

 
A range of advanced questions had been submitted by Members before the meeting and a 
number of answers were provided to these questions asked by the Chair. 
 

 What progress has been made since the decision was taken to move all low and 
medium secure services off the Mersey Care Whalley Site? 

 

 Has work started on the Medium Secure Unit yet? 
 

 Has a location been identified for the Low Secure Unit yet? 
 

 How many patients have been resettled in the community from Mersey Care 
Whalley? Have any of these patients been readmitted? 
 

 Are there plans to use the low secure unit, which was recently built, for other health 
services, if not by NHS England then by the CCG or anyone else? If not, what is 
planned for the site? 

 
Timescales for changes had been moved back until 2020, with a commitment to close the 
site by then but to keep patients safe over that period of time. 
 

Resolved (3) That the presentation on Transforming Care by NHS 
England be noted by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Communities and Wellbeing Committee; 

 (4) That NHS England give serious consideration to an 
appropriate location for the Low Secure Unit. Moving 
the site to Maghull (or somewhere of similar distance) 
would likely lead to the inability to retain the current 
skilled staff at Mersey Care based on the Whalley Site.  
This could lead to a number of redundancies in the East 
Lancashire area and potential recruitment issues for the 
new site. 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
146 

 
LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 

 

 
Friday, 5th January, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Melissa Fisher (in the Chair), Councillors Terry Hurn and 

Joyce Plummer 
 

Apologies  

  

 
290 Apologies for Absence 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

291 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

292 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 14th December 2017 
were submitted for approval as a correct record. 

Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 
record. 

 
293 Licensing Hearing Procedure 

 
The Council’s Conduct of Hearings Procedure which was to be used in relation to hearings 
required under the Licensing Act 2003 was submitted. 

Resolved - That the Procedure be noted. 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972.  The reason being to 
comply with the timescale set out in the Licensing Act 2003 for consideration of temporary 
event notices serviced on the Council. 
 

294 Licensing Act 2003 Determination Hearing - Opium and Voodoo Lounge, Accrington 
 
In accordance with the Hyndburn Borough Council Policy on the Conduct of Hearings and 
Section 105(2)(a) of the Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing Manager submitted a report 
relating to Temporary Event Notices served on the Council under Section 100 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the premises known as the Opium and Voodoo Lounge, 
Willow Street, Accrington for events to take place during January 2018.  A subsequent 
objection submitted by the Lancashire Constabulary was appended to the report, together 
with the temporary event notices and the existing premises licence.  A decision to revoke 
the existing premises licence had been made by the Licensing Sub-Committee on 14th 
December 2017 and the 21 days to appeal the decision following receipt of the decision 
notice supplied meant that the premises licence could still be used during that time.   
 

Page 45



 
 
 

 

 
147 

Police Sergeant Jason Middleton indicated that following meaningful dialogue with the 
applicant in regard to Police concerns, Lancashire Constabulary wished to withdraw its 
objection to the granting of temporary event notices for the premises.   
 
The Solicitor to the Council indicated that although the withdrawal of the objection meant 
there was no case to be considered, it was felt that the seriousness of the recent revocation 
of the premises licence merited the need to clarify the position relating to marketing of 
drinks promotions and running of the premises.  Police Sergeant Middleton reported that 
the drinks promotion advertisement had been amended and this, together with the fact that 
there appeared to have been no recent incidents of crime and disorder at the premises 
indicated that management of the premises had improved.  The Police were satisfied that 
licensing objectives were no longer being undermined.  Copies of previous drinks promotion 
advertisements and the amended advertisement were circulated at the meeting for 
information. 
 
The applicant, together with his representative, had been invited to attend the meeting and 
in that respect the applicant (Richard Stansfield) and his Solicitor (Malcolm Ireland), 
together with the applicant’s brother (Daniel Stansfield) were in attendance. 
 
The Police were aware that licensing conditions were not included in temporary event 
notices and the applicant and his Solicitor gave assurances that the agreement with the 
Police would be abided by and that events would be operated in accordance with conditions 
applicable to new premises licences.  Police Sergeant Middleton indicated that the 
assurances given and the arrangements agreed with the applicant were acceptable.  The 
holder of the premises licence (Michael Cookson) had informed the Licensing Manager that 
he was happy for the applicant to use the licence provided no inappropriate drinks 
promotions took place. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee emphasised that due to the withdrawal of the objection 
received from Lancashire Constabulary, it had been clear there was no decision to be made 
by either the Sub-Committee or the Council in regard to the temporary event notices and 
that Police Sergeant Middleton, on behalf of Lancashire Constabulary, was satisfied with 
the assurances given by the applicant and his Solicitor in regard to the proposed drinks 
promotions and future management of the premises. 

Resolved - That the withdrawal of the objection submitted by 
Lancashire Constabulary in regard to temporary event 
notices for the premises known as the Opium and 
Voodoo Lounge, Willow Street, Accrington and the 
assurances given to the Police and the Licensing Sub-
Committee by the applicant and his Solicitor in relation 
to the marketing of drinks promotions and the running 
of the premises be noted. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 46



 
 
 

 

 
148 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
156 

 
JUDICIAL COMMITTEE (PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY 

CARRIAGE LICENSING) 
 

 
Monday, 22nd January, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Joyce Plummer (in the Chair), Councillors Stewart Eaves, 

Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, Julie Livesey and Paddy Short 
 

Apologies Eamonn Higgins 

  

 
309 Apology for Absence 

 
An apology for absence was submitted from Councillor Eamonn Higgins. 
 

310 Substitution 
 
Councillor Glen Harrison attended the meeting as substitute representative for Councillor 
Eamonn Higgins. 
 

311 Declarations of Interest or Dispensation 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

312 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Judicial Committee (Private Hire and Hackney Carriage 
Licensing) held on 20th November 2017 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

313 Licensing Procedures for Meetings of the Committee 
 
The General Licensing Procedure and the Complaints Licensing Procedure to be followed 
at the meeting in relation to hackney carriage and private hire driver licences were 
submitted.  Copies of the procedures had been sent to the licensed drivers and the 
complainant. 
 
Resolved - That the Procedures be noted. 
 

314 Licensing Guidelines 
 
The Hyndburn Borough Council Licensing Policy Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 2017 
(Guidance on the Relevance of Convictions) was submitted.  A copy of the Guidance had 
been sent to the drivers and complainant. 
 
Resolved - That the Guidelines be noted. 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 
 
 

 

 
157 

 
315 Exclusion of the Public 

 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following items, when it was likely, 
in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or 
the nature of the proceedings, that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 
the Paragraphs at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at 
the items. 

 
316 Consideration of an Existing Private Hire Driver's Licence (MD) 

 
Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3  -  
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information)) 
 
The Licensing Manager, on behalf of the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 
Services), submitted a report informing the Committee of relevant issues relating to a 
licensed private hire driver (MD).  A complaint had been lodged by a member of the public 
against the driver and was set out in the report.  The following documents were appended 
to the report:- 
 
Appendix 1 Copy of Complaint and Letter from complainant’s daughter which  
                       concurred with the complainant  
Appendix 2 Copy of Notes of Interview held with the driver 
 
In accordance with licensing procedure, the driver (MD) and his representative had been 
invited to attend the meeting and in that respect, neither the driver or his representative 
were in attendance.  The complainant (Mr. Z) and his representative had also been invited 
to the meeting and in that respect, the complainant was in attendance.  The Committee 
agreed to determine the complaint in the driver’s absence. 
 
Attention was drawn to the Hyndburn Borough Council Licensing Policy Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire 2017 (Guidelines on the Relevance of Convictions).  Legal advice on the 
relevance of the complaint, a previous conviction and three warnings for minor incidents 
was sought by and provided to the Committee at the meeting. 
 
The Committee was requested to:- 
 
(a) Determine whether the facts related in the complaint were substantially true; 
 
(b) Having made a finding of the facts, decide whether those facts revealed if the  

driver had acted in any way which would bring into doubt his suitability to hold a 
driver’s licence with the Authority;  and,  

 
(c) Determine what action, if any, should be taken against the driver. 
 
Decision of the Committee:- 

Resolved (1) That the complaint lodged against the private hire 
vehicle driver (MD) be upheld.  The Committee found 
that on the balance of probabilities the evidence 
provided found in favour of the complaint;  and, 

Page 50



 
 
 

 

 
158 

 (2) That, as the driver (MD) was not considered to be a ‘fit 
and proper person’, in that his conduct had been 
inappropriate and not that expected of a licensed 
private hire vehicle driver, his private hire driver’s 
licence be revoked pursuant to Sections 61(1)(a)(ii) and 
61(1)(b) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 in the interests of public safety.  
The revocation to be with immediate effect pursuant to 
Section 61(2B) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 (as amended by the Road Safety 
Act 2006) and for the reasons outlined at the meeting 
and set out in the decision notice. 

 
317 Consideration of an Existing Private Hire Driver's Licence and Existing Private Hire 

Vehicle Licence (SM) 
 
Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Licensing Manager, on behalf of the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 
Services) submitted a report informing the Committee of relevant issues relating to an 
existing private hire driver (SM) and his private hire vehicle licence.  A copy of a document 
signed by the driver stating that he understood that the failure to comply with any of the 
requirements wet out in the Hyndburn Borough Council’s adopted rules, regulations and 
procedures for hackney carriage and private hire licensing could lead to suspension or 
revocation of his licence as appended to the report. 
 
Attention was drawn to the Hyndburn Borough Council Licensing Policy Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire 2017 (Guidelines on the Relevance of Convictions).  Legal advice on the 
relevance of the information contained within the report and the previous good history of the 
driver was sought by and provided to the Committee at the meeting. 
 
In accordance with licensing procedure, the driver (SM) and his representative had been 
invited to attend the meeting and in that respect the driver and his Solicitor (DL) were in 
attendance.  With the permission of the Committee, the driver’s representative circulated 
character references and a letter from the Body Shop at which the driver’s vehicle had been 
for repairs. 
 
The Committee was requested to determine whether there was reasonable cause to 
suspend or revoke the driver’s private hire driver’s licence and / or his private hire vehicle 
licence, whether to issue a warning or whether to take no further action. 
 
Decision of the Committee:- 

Resolved - That as the conduct of the driver (SM) had been 
inappropriate and not that expected of a licensed 
private hire vehicle driver, the Committee having taken 
into consideration the driver’s previous good history, 
decided that a written warning be issued to the driver 
for the reasons outlined at the meeting and set out in 
the decision notice.   

 

Page 51



 
 
 

 

 
159 

 
318 Consideration of an Existing Private Hire Driver's Licence (MK) 

 
Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Licensing Manager, on behalf of the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 
Services) submitted a report informing the Committee of relevant issues relating to an 
existing private hire driver (MK).  The following documents were appended to the report:- 
 
Appendix 1  -  Copy of Statement from Complainant 
Appendix 2  -  Copy of Letter received by the Complainant from the Police 
Appendix 3  -  Copy of Notes of Interview with the Driver 
 
In accordance with licensing procedure, the driver (MK) and his representative had been 
invited to attend the meeting and in that respect, neither the driver or his representative 
were in attendance.  The Committee agreed to determine the matter in the driver’s 
absence. 
 
Attention was drawn to the Hyndburn Borough Council Licensing Policy Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire 2017 (Guidelines on the Relevance of Convictions).  Legal advice on the 
relevance of a serious driving offence conviction and failure to notify the Council of that 
conviction at that time was sought by and provided to the Committee at the meeting. 
 
In the light of the information contained within the report, the Committee was requested to 
determine whether it was satisfied that the driver was still a ‘fit and proper person’ to hold a 
private hire driver’s licence and to determine what action, if any, should be taken against 
the driver. 
 
Decision of the Committee:- 

Resolved - That, although the driver (MK) was not considered to be 
a ‘fit and proper person’, in that his conduct had been 
inappropriate and not that expected of a licensed 
private hire vehicle driver, his private hire driver’s 
licence be revoked pursuant to Sections 61(1)(a)(ii) and 
61(1)(b) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 in the interests of public safety.  
The revocation to be with immediate effect pursuant to 
Section 61(2B) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 (as amended by the Road Safety 
Act 2006) and for the reasons outlined at the meeting 
and set out in the decision notice. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 52



 
 
 

 

 
160 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
161 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
Tuesday, 30th January, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair), Councillors Judith Addison, 

Jean Battle, Bernard Dawson, Stewart Eaves, June Harrison, 
Paddy Short, Munsif Dad, Tim O'Kane and Terry Hurn 
 

Apologies: Councillors Mohammad Ayub, Loraine Cox and Kath Pratt 

  

 
319 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Mohammed Ayub, Loraine Cox and 
Kath Pratt. 
 
Councillors Stephen Button and Melissa Fisher were absent from the meeting and no 
apologies of absence had been submitted on their behalf. 
 
Councillors Munsif Dad, Tim O’Kane and Terry Hurn acted as substitute representatives for 
Councillors Ayub, L. Cox and Pratt. 
 
There were no substitute representatives for Councillors Button and Fisher. 
  
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations.  
 

320 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last Planning Committee held on the 13th December 2017, were 
submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

321 Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination 
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report setting out recommended 
action on the following planning applications. 
 
Resolved   - (1) That the following planning application be approved  

subject to the conditions as per the agenda report and 
supplementary update report:- 

 
11/17/0537 Change of use from private allotments to residential caravan park for 5 static 
caravans and 5 smaller caravans  
Land to the rear of Milton Street, Oswaldtwistle 
 
N.B. 1. The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer drew the Committee’s attention to 
the extra information and conditions contained within the update report which was released 
before the meeting and related to the above planning application. 
 

Page 55



 
 
 

 

 
162 

2. Mr Chris Knight spoke at the Committee in objection of the above planning application 
and against the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning permission. 
 
Resolved  - (2) That the following planning application be approved 

subject to the conditions as per the agenda report, 
supplementary update report and that the Chief Planning and 
Transportation Officer be granted delegated authority to make 
minor amends to some of the conditions:- 

 
11/17/0407 & Major Full: Change of use and erection of 26 no apartments  
11/17/0408 and modification for remains of listed building (including roof  
terrace) & 
Listed building Consent: Consolidation of ruinous remains of  
building and erection of new structure to create 26 no apartments,  
Including roof terrace and restoration of some historic detail.  
Former Conservative Club, Cannon Street, Accrington    
 
N.B. 1. Before determination of the application, Councillor Munsif Dad stated he had 
provided comments to the local media on this planning application as at the time he was not 
invited as a substitute representative for the Planning Committee. He felt that his quotes 
could be viewed as a pre determination of the application and left the meeting room playing 
no part in the debate or voting of the scheme. 
 
2. The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer drew the Committee’s attention to the 
extra information and conditions contained within the update report which was released 
before the meeting and related to the above planning application. 
 
3. Mr Duncan Isherwood spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning 
application and in favour of the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning permission. 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 56



 

 
163 

 
COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
Wednesday, 31st January, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Glen Harrison (in the Chair),  

Councillors Judith Addison, Jean Battle and Stewart Eaves 
 

In Attendance: Deborah Clark, Managing Director of Community Solutions North West  

  

Apologies: Bernadette Parkinson, Mohammad Ayub, Loraine Cox, Abdul Khan and 
Kath Pratt 
 

 
322 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Pratt, Khan, Loraine Cox and 
Bernadette Parkinson.  The following Councillors acted as substitute representatives: 
 
Councillor Judith Addison for Councillor Kath Pratt 
Councillor Stuart Eaves for Councillor Bernadette Parkinson 
Councillor Jean Battle for Councillor Loraine Cox 
 

323 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

324 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 
Wednesday, 31st January 2018 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
  
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

325 Evergreen School Update 
 
Resolved - That the item on Evergreen School be deferred to a 

future meeting. 
. 
 

326 Chairs Update on Lancashire Health Scrutiny 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to update the Committee on activity 
from Lancashire County Council’s Health Scrutiny which may affect Hyndburn or residents 
of Hyndburn.  The Chair informed the Committee that he was a co-opted Member of the 
LCC Health Scrutiny Committee and that the report provided details of the issues that had 
been discussed. 
 
Councillor Battle referred to the standard of public health consultations undertaken by the 
Health Authority recently and indicated that the number of participants consulted did not 

Page 57



 
 
 

 

 
164 

represent the number of people any actions would have an impact on.  The Chair agreed 
that questionnaires and consultations were not very robust when establishing public 
opinion.   
 
Resolved - That the report be noted. 
 

327 Responses of Cabinet to Reports of Overview and Scrutiny 
 
Members were provided with a report outlining the responses from Cabinet to 
recommendations made by the Committee relating to Veterans in Hyndburn.  The report set 
out the recommendations and the responses from Cabinet. 

Resolved - That the Cabinet response be noted.  
 

328 2018/19 Work Programme Planning 
 

Members were requested to consider items for the Work Programme for 2018/19 and 
forward any ideas for items to the Overview and Scrutiny Officer. 

Resolved - That Members forward ideas for items for the Work 
Programme 2018/19 to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Officer.   

 
329 Transitions Solutions Services 

 
Deborah Clark, Managing Director of Community Solutions North West gave a presentation 
on Transitions Solutions Services.  She reported that they were an organisation that 
focused on health and wellbeing and aimed to support families in need.  Packs of 
information were circulated to Members for further information.  She referred to the 
importance of finding and dealing with the root causes of issues within their work, to prevent 
further problems arising and recurring and for life transitions and interventions to be put in 
place.  She reported that Community Solutions had received a grant from the Lottery 
however, pointed out that public service cuts and other funding had resulted in a reliance on 
the voluntary sector to provide a service that had previously been a statutory requirement.   
 
She reported on the services provided by Community Solutions and how they reached 
people with the support of other partnership agencies.  She provided Members with a link to 
a video showing a personal account of how these services had provided assistance.  She 
referred to the importance of enrolling volunteers who would be trained in skills they could 
use in their future lives.   
 
Members asked how Community Solutions currently recruited volunteers, if they provided a 
service for people with learning disabilities, if there were referrals and volunteers from the 
Asian communities and to provide more details on training in communities. 
 
Deborah Clark reported that they recruited volunteers through the Job Centre, East 
Lancashire National Website, through word of mouth and schools/colleges etc.  She 
reported that they had a specific learning disability group of which some members were 
treated as staff and that they had worked with organisations like Awaz and had trained 
members of the Asian Communities as volunteers.  She reported that they had worked with 
Churches to provide bespoke training for communities.   
 
She requested support from the Council in highlighting the work of Community Solutions 
and in particular transitional services and their need for volunteers.  She indicated that she 

Page 58



 
 
 

 

 
165 

wanted to work more closely with staff and the departments of the Council to resolve local 
issues by having links back into the Council on a practical level.   

Resolved (1) That a presentation be made to Members at Full Council 
(pending availability) or a 60 Minute Session on 
Transitions Solutions Services; and  

 (2) That the Overview and Scrutiny Officer facilitates 
practical links between Community Solutions and the 
Council to improve services for residents in Hyndburn. 

 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



 
178 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Monday, 19th February, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Jenny Molineux (in the Chair),  

Councillors Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Stephen Button, Terry Hurn and 
Tim O'Kane 
Co-optee:  Mr. Ian Ormerod 
 
 

In Attendance: Councillor Miles Parkinson, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Paul Cox, Deputy Leader of the Council 
Councillor Clare Cleary, Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration 
Councillor Munsif Dad, Portfolio Holder for Health and Communities 
Councillor Gareth Molineux, Portfolio Holder for Resources 
Councillor Tony Dobson, Leader of the Conservative Group 
Councillor Judith Addison 
Three Members of the Public 
 

  

Apologies: Councillors Abdul Khan and Paddy Short 
 

 
344 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Abdul Khan and Paddy Short and 
Mr. Paul Barton (Co-optee). 
 
Councillors Joyce Plummer and June Harrison attended the meeting as substitute 
representatives for Councillors Abdul Khan and Paddy Short respectively. 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

345 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on the 14th 
December 2017 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

346 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2020/21 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Gareth Molineux) submitted a report giving 
the Council’s Medium Term Financial Position for 2018/19 to 2020/21.  The Strategy was 
attached to the report and set out the three year projections of income and spending for the 
Council ahead of formulating its savings plans so it could set an Annual Budget for 2018/19.   
 
Appendix 1 of the Strategy set out a standard model and further scenarios were provided in 
Appendix 2 with a pessimistic model and Appendix 3 detailing an optimistic model. 

Page 61



 
 
 

 

 
179 

The figures in Appendix 1 however remained the current best estimate of the likely financial 
position over the next three years.  The report addressed the following aspects and had 
been submitted to Cabinet on 14th February 2018:- 
 

 Introduction 

 Objectives 

 Elements of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Service Planning to Support Overall Strategy 

 Integrated Resource Planning with Service Plans 

 Background Information 

 Financial Analysis 2018/19 to 2020/21 

 Resources 

 Government Grant 

 Council Tax 

 Expected loss of income 

 Changes in Costs 

 Growth 

 Reserves 

 Other Assumptions 

 Scenarios 

 Robustness of Forecast 

 Overall Net Position 
 
A number of responses were provided by Councillor Gareth Molineux to the advanced 
questions submitted, which included: 
 

 How will the exit from the EU affect the finances of the Council in the medium term? 

 In terms of reserves, do we benchmark against other similar councils as to the 
amount we hold? With further Government cuts planned, is there any need for us to 
increase our level of reserves? 

 The report states that, for business rate growth, the Council will retain 50%, or 100% 
is we enter into a pool. Will we be entering into a pool and if so how will this work? 

 Will Council tax benefit remain with the Council after Housing benefit goes into 
Universal Credit? 

 Will the Council continue discussions with LCC to try to reinstate the cost share 
agreement for recycling? 

 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

347 Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 2018/19 to 
2020/2021 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report setting out the Council’s policy and 
objectives with respect to treasury management, to explain how it would achieve its 
objectives and manage its activities and to agree an investment strategy for 2018/19.   
 
Appendix 1 detailed the minimum revenue provision policy statement 2018/19. Appendix 2 
provided information of the treasury management policy statement 2018/19 and appendix 3 
was the HBC Treasury Management Practices 2018/19. 
 
No advanced questions had been submitted for this agenda item.  
 

Page 62



 
 
 

 

 
180 

The report addressed the following aspects and had been submitted to Cabinet on 14th 
February 2018:- 
 

 Prudential Code and Prudential Indicators 

 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing Requirement 

 Estimated Capital Expenditure 

 Minimum Revenue Provision 

 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

 Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19 – 2020/21 

 External Debt Overall Limits 

 External v Internal Borrowing 

 Limits on Activity 

 Debt Rescheduling 

 Investment Strategy 

 Treasury Management Practices (TMP) 

 Policy on the Use of External Service Providers 

 Treasury Management Strategy In-Year and Year End Reporting 
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

348 General Revenue Budget 2018/19 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report setting out proposals for the 2018/19 
General Fund Revenue Budget which also provided an overview of key issues which had 
arisen from the Medium Term Financial Strategy.   
 
The 2018/19 Revenue Budget required a net expenditure of £11,174,000 under the budget 
proposals detailed in appendices 1 and 2. 
 
Council Tax for Hyndburn residents would rise for Hyndburn Council provided services by 
£5.00 per year for a Band D property.  Altham Parish Council had set a separate precept for 
its activities and there was no increase on its charge. 
 
The following information was attached to the report, which had been submitted to Cabinet 
on 14th February 2018:-   
 

 Appendix 1  -  Initial Outline Budget 2018/19 

 Appendix 2  -  Revenue Budget 2018/19 

 Appendix 3  -  Savings Proposals 2018/19 

 Appendix 4  -  Hyndburn Borough Council Tax Increase 2018/19 by Property Band 

 Appendix 5  -  Overall Change in Council Tax 2018/19 

 Appendix 6  -  Altham Parish Precept 2018/19 by Property Valuation Band 
 
A number of responses were provided by Councillor Gareth Molineux to the advanced 
questions submitted, which included: 
 

 A recommendation gives delegated responsibility to the Deputy Chief Executive to 
draw on reserves if needed. Is this up to a certain level e.g. at what point would 
Cabinet approval be required? 

 Why is the New Homes Bonus down £226k this year? Can we do more to 
encourage house building? Do we have local powers to ease planning restrictions 
on certain sites? 

 What actions are being taken to address the deficit in the Market Hall budget? 

Page 63



 
 
 

 

 
181 

 Do we have measures in place to minimise the risk of supplier failure, particularly for 
large contracts? 

 
The following questions related to individual savings items identified in Appendix 3 and 
responses were given to the issues raised by the Committee: 

 
 The overtime budget for Waste Services enforcement is reducing by £2.4k. Fly 

tipping is a major concern for residents, therefore is it wise to reduce this budget? 

 How will £27k of additional income be gained from the Crematorium? 

 How will recycling income increase by £28k? 

 How will we generate £8k from street naming? 

 The Mayoral Overtime budget has been removed? Will this restrict the support for 
the Mayor in the coming years? 

 Cannon Street building is still costing the Council. Are we any closer to selling the 
building? 

 Is the £227k saving for the Leisure Trust achievable, bearing in mind the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy identifies “the continuing trading difficulties experienced by 
Hyndburn Leisure” as a risk? 

 
Questions were also asked from members of the public and individual Members of the 
Council in attendance at the meeting in relation to: 
 

 Level of subscription to the green bin collection service 

 Budget proposed for events in the new town square 
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted and supported. 
 

349 Capital Programme 2018/19 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report relating to the Council’s capital 
investment priorities for 2018/19 and asked Cabinet on the 14th February 2018 to 
recommend to the Council a capital programme for approval at its meeting on 22nd 
February 2018, having regard to key linkages between the management of the Council’s 
capital and revenue resources.   
 
A Capital Programme for 2018/19 of £4,939,283 gross was attached to the report in 
Appendix 1.   
 
Reference was made to Accrington Town Centre investments including the Town Hall and 
Market Hall, disabled facility grants, Woodnook housing stock, sports facilities, a safe house 
and Christmas decorations.  
 
Responses were given to the following questions raised by the Committee:-  
 

 What is the ATH Phase 4 project and how will it benefit the Council? 

 Is the £30k safe house investment in a new safe house or to improve the current 
one? 

 You state that the council is going to increase its funding for disabled adaptations for 
the residents of Hyndburn. Do you have any money set aside to support with the 
advertising of the funding and processing of applications as in the past, this grant 
funding hasn't been up taken and also if the council doesn't allocate all it's funding 
for the next  year, will this have a negative impact on subsequent funding from 
central government? 

Page 64



 
 
 

 

 
182 

 The report states that the council plans to put money aside for supporting with 
Christmas in our townships. Could you please clarify how this money is going to be 
spent? I.E are the funds going to be split in regards to township size by population?  

 What will the town hall service yard improvements entail? 

 What Market and Market Hall Improvements are planned? 

 Is the £1.1million allocated to Woodnook to continue the current scheme of 
improvements to existing houses? 

 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted and supported. 
 

350 Opposition Group  -  Budget Proposal 2018/19 
 
The Opposition Group (Conservative Group) circulated at the meeting alternative proposals 
for the Council’s 2018/19 Budget and the Leader of the Group (Councillor Tony Dobson) 
discussed each of the proposals in detail which included: 
 

 Extra trade waste income generated by the Cleansing Team  

 Council loans to business investors in the borough 

 Dividend from Globe Enterprises 

 MOT centre to provide services for residents and commercial trade 

 Bulky Goods service transferred to the British Heart Foundation  
 
Responses by Councillor Dobson were given to questions raised by the Committee and 
Leader of the Council. 
 
The extra income of £159,000 along with reducing reserves by £250,000 would provide an 
expenditure of £409,000 for the floral market town initiative and the Conservative town 
centre action plan. 
 
Resolved - That the budget proposals to the Committee by the  

Opposition Group (Conservative Group) be noted and the 
Leader of the Conservative Group be thanked for his 
contribution to the discussions of the Committee. 

 
351 The Leader of the Council to Receive Representations and Questions from Members 

of the Public and Individual Members of the Council on the Budget 
 
Members of the Public had been invited to attend the meeting to hear about budget 
proposals and to ask questions about the budget if they so wished.  Three residents were in 
attendance, one of whom raised a question in relation to the collection charge for green bin 
waste. The Leader of the Council responded with information to the issues raised. 
 

352 Summary of Overview and Scrutiny Comments and Resolutions to be presented to 
Council 
 
The Chair referred to the need to submit a summary of the discussions held and decisions 
reached during the meeting of the Committee to full Council on the 22nd February 2018. 
 
Resolved - That Council be requested to note the following  

resolutions of the Committee:- 
 
(1) That the contents of the following reports be noted:- 

 

Page 65



 
 
 

 

 
183 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to  
2020/21 
Prudential Indicators and Treasury  Management &  
Investment Strategy 2018/19 to 2020/21 

    General Fund Revenue Budget 2018/19  
    General Fund Capital Budget 2018/19 
 

(2) That the Committee thanks the Leader of the  
Council, Portfolio Holder for Resources and Leader of the 
Opposition for their participation in the scrutiny meeting 
and debate. 

 
(3) That the HBC Deputy Chief Executive and all other 

Officers involved, be commended for their work in 
producing the budget. 

 
   (4) That having reviewed and debated the budget  

submitted, the contents of the revenue and capital budget 
reports be supported as outlined. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 66



 

 
184 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
Wednesday, 21st February, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair), Councillors Loraine Cox (Vice 

Chair), Judith Addison, Mohammad Ayub, Jean Battle, Stephen Button, 
Bernard Dawson, Stewart Eaves, Melissa Fisher, June Harrison and 
Clare Cleary 
 

Apologies: Councillors Paddy Short 

  

 
353 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor Paddy Short. 
 
Councillor Kath Pratt was absent from the meeting and no apologies of absence had been 
submitted. 
  
Councillor Clare Cleary acted as substitute representative for Councillor Short. 
 
There was no substitute representative for Councillors Pratt. 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations.  
 

354 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last Planning Committee held on the 30th January 2018, were submitted 
for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

355 Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination 
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report setting out recommended 
action on the following planning applications. 
 
Resolved   - (1) That the following planning application be approved  

subject to the conditions as per the agenda report and 
supplementary update report:- 

 
- (2) That delegated powers be granted to the Chief  
Planning and Transportation Officer to finalise the wording for 
some of the conditions:- 

 
11/17/0340 Major Full: Application for 1no hotel and 1no  
conference/banqueting facility with associated parking,  
service year and internal access and landscaping. 
Land North of Blackburn Road, South of Whitebirk Drive, West of  
the M65 (Near Junction 6) and East of Abbott Close, Knuzden. 
 

Page 67



 
 
 

 

 
185 

N.B. 1. The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer drew the Committee’s attention to the 
extra information and proposed conditions contained within the update report which was 
released before the meeting and related to the above planning application. 
 
2. Ms Emily Robinson spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning application 
and in favour of the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning permission. 
 
3. Councillor Miles Parkinson spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning 
application and in favour of the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning permission. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 68


	Agenda
	4. Confirmation of Minutes
	6. Draft Pay Policy 2018
	Draft Pay Policy 2018  -  Appendix

	7. Minutes of Cabinet
	Cabinet Minutes 14-02-2018

	8. Minutes of Committees
	Minutes - Licensing Sub-Cttee 05-01-2018
	Minutes - Judicial Cttee (PH&HC Lic) 22-01-2018
	Minutes - Planning Cttee 30-01-2018
	Minutes - Communities and Wellbeing OS Cttee 31-01-2018
	Minutes - Resources OS Cttee 19-02-2018
	Minutes - Planning Committee 21-02-2018


